# **ORIGINAL**

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

MAR 27 199A

SHAN BORNING COUNT

CASE NO. 92,702

KIMBERLI JORDAN,

Petitioner,

versus

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
IN AND FOR ST. JOHNS COUNTY
AND THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

#### PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON, PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

BRYNN NEWTON
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
Florida Bar Number 175150
112-A Orange Avenue
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114-4310
904-252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

## **

## PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the Defendant and Respondent was the Prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court, Seventh Judicial Circuit, in and for St. Johns County, Florida. In the Brief the Respondent will be referred to as "the State" and the Petitioner will be referred to as she appears before this Honorable Court of Appeal.

In the brief the following symbols will be used:

"R" - Record on appeal

"T" - Transcript of trial proceedings, Volumes I through V, as numbered by the Court Reporter

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Petitioner was charged by an information filed in the Circuit Court of St. Johns County, Florida, with committing manslaughter by driving under the influence of alcohol or drugs; two counts of driving under the influence resulting in serious bodily injury to another; and driving while her license was suspended. (R 1-2) She entered a plea of nolo contendere to driving while license suspended and on October 28 and 30 through 31, 1996, she was tried by a jury and found guilty of DUI manslaughter and two counts of causing personal damage by driving under the influence. (T 574-576, Vol. V; R 61-63) On December 13, 1996, she was sentenced to concurrent prison and county jail terms totaling 253.75 months, and it was announced that her license to drive would be permanently revoked. (R 205-206, R 108-113)

On February 20, 1998, the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed her convictions and sentences, citing as authority its decisions in Mays v. State, 693 So. 2d 52 (Fla. 5th DCA), review granted, 700 So. 2d 686 (Fla. 1997); and Green v. State, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA), review granted, 699 So. 2d 1373 (Fla. 1997). Jordan v. State, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D536 (Fla. 5th DCA February 20, 1998). (APPENDIX). Her notice of seeking this Honorable Court's review was filed on March 23, 1998.

#### STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

About 10:30 p.m. on May 15, 1996, Jennifer Sadow was killed when her car, driven by her boy friend eastbound on State Road 312 in St. Johns County, was struck by Petitioner's car which witnesses said had not stopped at an intersection with the highway. (T 119, 120, 122, 123, 126, 129-131, 133, 137, 138, 140, 141, 144-146, 149, 150, 154, 155, 157, 160, 161, 170, 243, 244, Vol. II; T 252, 324, 325, Vol. III; T 361, 362, Vol. IV) Petitioner's four-year-old daughter and her daughter's friend each received a facial cut that required stitching, and Petitioner was cut on her head. (T 147, 151, 162, 179, 182-184, 190, 193-196, 202, 205, 222, 230, 231, 233-235, Vol. II; T 305, 440, Vol. III)

Some witnesses who were at the scene of the accident testified that Petitioner appeared to them to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs. (T 150, 161, 162, 164, 167-170, 172-174, Vol. II) Her ex-husband who came to the scene testified that Petitioner was agitated but that nothing suggested to him that she was under the influence of intoxicants. (T 187, 188, Vol. II) A deputy, a nurse, and a Florida Highway Patrolman who saw Petitioner at the hospital described her as exhibiting an odor of alcohol, a flushed face, bloodshot eyes, slightly slurred speech, clear speech, a staggering gait, a normal manner of walking, and extreme nervousness, and each believed that she was under the influence. (T 199, 201, 203-205, Vol. II; T 266, 267, 277, 305, 306, 312, 326, 327, 340, Vol. III) Witnesses said that Petitioner told them that night that "They hit us" or "He ran into me." (T 147, 160, Vol. II; T 265, Vol. III)

An emergency room doctor who treated Petitioner at the hospital noted in his report that she was intoxicated with alcohol, in his professional opinion. (T 212, 213, 216, 222, 225, Vol. II) He was also permitted to testify that he noted that she displayed toxic nystagmus, over defense counsel's objections. (T 214, 218, 219, 220, 225, Vol. II)

Petitioner initially refused and then submitted to have blood drawn by a hospital nurse. (T 243, Vol. II; T 264-266, 278, 279, Vol. III) The blood kit was returned to the Highway Patrolman who kept it in his trunk, inside the county jail, the Florida Highway Patrol station in St. Johns County, and overnight in his residence, until he delivered it to the Florida Highway Patrol station in Putnam County a day and a half later from whence it was mailed to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement laboratory in Jacksonville where it arrived six and a half days after the blood was drawn. (T 268, 270, 272, 275, 276, 283-285, 287-291, 294-296, 303, 309, Vol. III; T 375, 388, Vol. IV) A forensic toxicologist testified that her examination of the sample revealed a blood alcohol level of .19%. (T 367, 383, 404, Vol. IV) She said that the blood did not appear to be coagulated or to have been exposed to extreme heat, but she conducted no chemical tests to determine whether the sample's not being refrigerated until it reached the laboratory had affected it. (T 380, 381, 394, Vol. IV)

Petitioner, who had taken a hiatus from being a registered nurse to rear a family, had spent the day in her neighborhood, at a park, and at the beach with her children, and had consumed one and a half glasses of wine over the course of the afternoon.

(T 429, 430, Vol. IV; T 191, 192, 196, 235-238, 240, 241, Vol. II; T 431-434, Vol. IV) She testified that she drank no more alcohol after she took some Tranxene, a tranquilizer that had been prescribed for her since her home burned down. (T 434, 440, 441, 444-447, 452, 453, 456, Vol. IV) About nine-thirty she took the rambunctious four-year-olds for a ride and, on the way back home, the accident occurred and she hit her head on the steering wheel. (T 434-436, 447-451, Vol. IV)

# **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT**

The Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this cause cites as controlling authority decisions which have been accepted for and are pending review in Supreme Court Cases Number 90,696 and Number 90,826.

#### **ISSUE**

THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S DECISION CITES AS CONTROLLING AUTHORITY ITS DECISIONS IN MAYS V. STATE, 693 So. 2d 52 (Fla. 5th DCA); AND GREEN V. STATE, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA), WHICH ARE PENDING REVIEW BY THIS HONORABLE COURT.

Petitioner was tried by a jury, found guilty of DUI manslaughter and two counts of causing personal damage by driving under the influence, and was sentenced to concurrent prison and county jail terms totaling 253.75 months. (T 574-576, Vol. V; R 61-63, 108-113, 205-206)

In its decision affirming Petitioner's convictions and sentences, the Fifth District Court of Appeal wrote:

Jordan argues that section 921.005(5) does not permit a court to sentence outside the statutory maximum unless the entire range exceeds it. We have previously rejected this interpretation. See Mays v. State, 693 So. 2d 52 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev. granted, 700 So. 2d 686 (Fla. 1997); Green v. State, 691 So. 2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA), 699 So. 2d 1373 (Fla. 1997). We have taken the view that if the sentencing range encompasses and includes the statutory maximum, thereby exceeding the statutory maximum at the upper range, the trial judge may sentence a defendant within the full range set forth in the guidelines.

<u>Jordan v. State</u>, 23 Fla. L. Weekly D536 (Fla. 5th DCA February 20, 1998). (APPENDIX). <u>Mays</u>, <u>supra</u>, and <u>Green</u>, <u>supra</u>, have been accepted for review in Florida Supreme Court Cases Number 90,826 and Number 90,696, respectively.

Because the decision in this case cites decisions, <u>Mays</u> and <u>Green</u>, which are pending review by the Florida Supreme Court, this Honorable Court has jurisdiction of

this appeal and should grant review in this cause. <u>See Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981), wherein this Honorable Court held that a District Court of Appeal <u>per curiam</u> opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by the Supreme Court constitutes <u>prima facie</u> conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction.

#### CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's decision in this cause.