ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

APR 15 1998

CLERK COURT

KIMBERLI JORDAN,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 92,702

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON APPEAL FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

LORI E. NELSON
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #0971995
444 Seabreeze Boulevard
5th Floor
Daytona Beach, FL 32118
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS:

Respondent rejects Petitioner's statement of the case and facts, as it contains record citations to the trial court proceedings. For purposes of determining conflict jurisdiction, the Supreme Court is limited to the facts which appear within the four corners of the decision allegedly in conflict. Hardee v. State, 534 So. 2d 706, 708 n. (Fla. 1988); Reaves v. State, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 n. 3 (Fla. 1986). Respondent therefore substitutes the following facts, taken from the decision allegedly in conflict:

Petitioner was convicted of DUI manslaughter, two counts of DUI damage to a person, and driving with a suspended or revoked license. <u>Jordan v. State</u>, 23 Fla.L.Weekly D536 (Fla. 5th DCA February 20, 1998). DUI manslaughter is a second degree felony, punishable by up to 15 years in prison. <u>Id</u>. at D537. Petitioner was sentenced pursuant to the sentencing guidelines. Her sentencing scoresheet resulted in a recommended sentence of 203 months, a minimum of 152.25 months and a maximum of 253.75 months (21.1 years). <u>Id</u>. The trial court imposed a sentence of 21.1 years. <u>Id</u>.

On appeal, petitioner argued that her sentence exceeded the statutory maximum of fifteen years for the offense of DUI manslaughter. <u>Jordan</u>, 23 Fla. L. Weekly at D537. The Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed petitioner's sentence pursuant to Section 921.001(5), Florida Statutes (1995), holding:

We have taken the view that if the sentencing range encompasses and includes the statutory maximum, thereby exceeding the statutory maximum at the upper range, the trial judge may sentence a defendant within the full range set forth in the guidelines.

Id. The district court cited as authority Mays v. State, 693 So.2d 52 (Fla. 5th DCA) rev. granted, 700 So.2d 686 (Fla. 1997), and Green v. State, 691 So.2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev. granted, 699 So.2d 1373 (Fla. 1997).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

POINT OF LAW: The Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed petitioner's sentence, citing as authority two decisions which are currently pending review in this Court. It thus appears that this Court has jurisdiction to review the district court's opinion below.

ARGUMENT

POINT OF LAW

IT APPEARS THAT THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION, AS THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL AFFIRMED PETITIONER'S SENTENCE, CITING AS AUTHORITY TWO DECISIONS WHICH ARE CURRENTLY PENDING REVIEW IN THIS COURT.

In the instant case, the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed petitioner's sentence, citing as authority Mays v. State, 693 So.2d 52 (Fla. 5th DCA) rev. granted, 700 So.2d 686 (Fla. 1997), and Green v. State, 691 So.2d 502 (Fla. 5th DCA), rev. granted, 699 So.2d 1373 (Fla. 1997). Jordan v. State, 23 Fla.L.Weekly D536, D537 (Fla. 5th DCA February 20, 1998).

This Court has held that where a district court affirms, citing as authority a prior decision which is pending review in this Court, this Court has conflict jurisdiction to review the district court's decision. Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981); See also Difilippo v. Rayle, 684 So.2d 819 (Fla. 1996). In the instant case the Fifth District Court of Appeal cited, as authority, two cases which are currently pending review in this Court. It thus appears that this Court has jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fifth District below.

CONCLUSION

Based on the argument and authorities presented herein, respondent acknowledges that this honorable Court may accept jurisdiction in the instant case.